

The department of transportation shall construct and maintain recreational vehicle sanitary disposal systems in the following rest areas lying along highways which are a part of the interstate highway system:

- (1) Gee Creek rest area, northbound and southbound on Interstate 5 in Clark county;
- (2) Sea-Tac rest area, northbound on Interstate 5 in King county;
- (3) Silver Lake rest area, southbound on Interstate 5 in Snohomish county;
- (4) Winchester Wasteway rest area, eastbound and westbound on Interstate 90 in Grant county;
- (5) Sprague rest area, eastbound on Interstate 90 in Lincoln county; and
- (6) Selah Creek rest area, northbound and southbound on Interstate 82 in Yakima county.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 2. There is added to chapter 46.16 RCW a new section to read as follows:

In addition to other fees for the licensing of vehicles there shall be paid and collected annually for each camper, travel trailer and motor home as the same are defined in RCW 82.50.010 a fee of one dollar to be deposited in the RV account of the motor vehicle fund.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. There is added to chapter 46.68 RCW a new section to read as follows:

There is hereby created in the motor vehicle fund the RV account. All moneys hereafter deposited in said account shall be used by the department of transportation for the construction and maintenance of recreational vehicle sanitary disposal systems at rest areas on federal-aid highways.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1980.

Passed the House February 5, 1980.

Passed the Senate February 19, 1980.

Approved by the Governor March 3, 1980.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 3, 1980.

CHAPTER 61

[Substitute House Bill No. 1466]

SCHOOL DISTRICT PURCHASES

AN ACT Relating to education; and amending section 28A.58.135, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 26, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28A.58.135.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 28A.58.135, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 26, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 28A.58.135 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) When, in the opinion of the board of directors of any school district, the cost of any furniture, supplies, equipment, building, improvements, or repairs, or other work or purchases, except books, will equal or exceed the sum of ~~((thirty-five hundred))~~ ten thousand dollars, complete plans and specifications for such work or purchases shall be prepared and notice by publication given in at least one newspaper of general circulation within the district, once each week for two consecutive weeks, of the intention to receive bids therefor and that specifications and other information may be examined at the office of the board or any other officially designated location: PROVIDED, That the board without giving such notice may make improvements or repairs to the property of the district through the shop and repair department of such district when the total of such improvements or repair does not exceed the sum of ~~((thirty-five))~~ forty-five hundred dollars. The cost of any public work, improvement or repair for the purposes of this section shall be the aggregate of all amounts to be paid for labor, material, and equipment on one continuous or interrelated project where work is to be performed simultaneously or in close sequence. The bids shall be in writing and shall be opened and read in public on the date and in the place named in the notice and after being opened shall be filed for public inspection.

(2) ~~((a))~~ In lieu of the procedure described in subsection (1) of this section, bids may be solicited by telephone from a list of bidders prequalified in accordance with rules adopted by the superintendent of public instruction. Telephone solicitation shall not be used for purchases costing more than ~~seventy-five~~ hundred dollars or for building improvements, repairs, or books. Telephone solicitation may be used for bids for all other materials, furniture, supplies, equipment, and other purchases up to a cost of ~~seventy-five~~ hundred dollars.

~~(b)~~ If bids are solicited by telephone, no award shall be made until at least three competitive bids have been received. After an award is made, the three or more bids shall be posted or otherwise made available at the office of the board or any other officially designated location.

~~(c)~~ All bidders shall confirm their telephone bids in writing to the board within seven days after bid date. Any bidder not making such written confirmation shall be subject to removal from the qualified bidders list at the discretion of the board.

~~(3))~~ Every purchase of furniture, equipment or supplies, except books, the cost of which is estimated to be in excess of forty-five hundred dollars, shall be on a competitive basis. The board of directors shall establish a procedure for securing telephone and/or written quotations for such purchases. Whenever the estimated cost is from forty-five hundred dollars up to ten thousand dollars, the procedure shall require quotations from at least three different sources to be obtained in writing or by telephone, and recorded for public perusal. Whenever the estimated cost is in excess of ten thousand

dollars, the public bidding process provided in subsection (1) of this section shall be followed.

(3) Every building, improvement, repair or other public works project, the cost of which is estimated to be in excess of forty-five hundred dollars, shall be on a competitive bid process. All such projects estimated to be less than ten thousand dollars may be awarded to a contractor on the small works roster. The small works roster shall be comprised of all responsible contractors who have requested to be on the list. The board of directors shall establish a procedure for securing telephone and/or written quotations from the contractors on the small works roster to assure establishment of a competitive price and for awarding contracts to the lowest responsible bidder. Such procedure shall require that a good faith effort be made to request quotations from all contractors on the small works roster who have indicated the capability of performing the kind of public works being contracted. Immediately after an award is made, the bid quotations obtained shall be recorded, open to public inspection, and available by telephone inquiry. The small works roster shall be revised at least once each year by publishing notice of such opportunity in at least one newspaper of general circulation in the district. Responsible contractors shall be added to the list at any time they submit a written request. Whenever the estimated cost of a public works project is ten thousand dollars or more, the public bidding process provided in subsection (1) of this section shall be followed.

(4) The contract for the work or purchase shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder as defined in RCW 43.19.1911: PROVIDED, That when bids have been solicited ((by telephone)) in the manner provided for in subsections (2) or (3) of this section and there is reason to believe that the lowest acceptable bid is not the best obtainable, all bids may be rejected, and the board may call for new bids. Any or all bids may be rejected for good cause. On any work or purchase the board shall provide bidding information to any qualified bidder or his agent, requesting it in person.

((4)) (5) In the event of any emergency when the public interest or property of the district would suffer material injury or damage by delay, upon resolution of the board declaring the existence of such an emergency and reciting the facts constituting the same, the board may waive the requirements of this section with reference to any purchase or contract: PROVIDED, That an "emergency", for the purposes of this section, means a condition likely to result in immediate physical injury to persons or to property of the school district in the absence of prompt remedial action.

~~((5) The superintendent of public instruction, in accordance with the administrative procedure act, chapter 34.04 RCW, shall adopt rules and regulations to implement the provisions of this section:))~~

Passed the House February 20, 1980.

Passed the Senate February 18, 1980.

Approved by the Governor March 3, 1980.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 3, 1980.

CHAPTER 62

[Substitute House Bill No. 1481]

COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES—TUITION AND FEE WAIVERS

AN ACT Relating to tuition and fee waivers; and amending section 1, chapter 262, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 28B.15.740.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 1, chapter 262, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 28B.15.740 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The total dollar amount of tuition and fee waivers awarded by any state university, regional university, or state college, ~~((or in the case of the state's community colleges, all of the community colleges considered as a whole,))~~ shall not exceed four percent of an amount determined by estimating the total collections from tuition, operating, and services and activities fees had no such waivers been made and deducting the portion of that total amount which is attributable to the difference between resident and nonresident fees: PROVIDED, That at least three-fourths of the dollars waived shall be for needy or disadvantaged students under the program authorized by RCW 28B.15.530.

(2) The total dollar amount of tuition and fee waivers awarded by all of the community colleges considered as a whole, shall not exceed three percent of an amount determined by estimating the total collections from tuition, operating, and services and activities fees had no such waivers been made and deducting the portion of that total amount which is attributable to the difference between resident and nonresident fees.

(3) The ~~((limitation))~~ limitations on total tuition and fee waivers provided in subsections (1) and (2) of this section shall apply only to the following programs:

(a) Waivers for needy or disadvantaged students as authorized by RCW 28B.15.530;

~~(b) ((Waivers for students enrolled in a course of study or program which will enable them to finish their high school education and obtain a high school diploma or certificate as authorized by RCW 28B.15.520;~~

~~(c))~~ Scholarships or waivers for foreign students as authorized by RCW 28B.10.200 and in RCW 28B.15.742: PROVIDED, That awards